MINUTES OF REGULAR BOARD MEETING
HORRY COUNTY SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY, INC.
February 25, 2025

The Horry County Solid Waste Authority, Inc. held a Board Meeting on Tuesday, February 25, 2025, at
3:00 P.M., at the Authority’s Administrative Office, 1886 Highway 90, Conway, South Carolina. In
accordance with the Freedom of Information Act, notices setting forth the date, time, and place of the
meeting were mailed to the news media.

Present were the following Board Members: Robert J. Kemp, Chairman; Pam J. Creech, Vice Chairman;
W. Norfleet Jones, Secretary and Board Members Wayne Fox, Samuel T. Johnson, Jr. and Dr. Albert G.
Hayward. Treasurer, Amos C. Berry was not in attendance.

Horry County Administrator Barry Spivey, Chief Chris Leonhardt, Lieutenant Christal Buckingham,
Corporal Eric Zink, from Horry County Police Department, Highway 90 Liaison Michael Hughes and
Valerie Moliterno represented the public in attendance. There were no members of the media present.

The following individuals were also in attendance: Danny Knight, Executive Director; Ed Marr,
Assistant Executive Director; Esther Murphy, Director; Jan Bitting, Director; Stephanie Todd, Director;
Richie Stetter, Director; and staff members Chris Calhoun, Drake Morris, Katherine Bell and Monica
Collier.

CALL TO ORDER
Chairman Kemp called the meeting to order and Dr. Hayward rendered the invocation.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Mr. Fox led the group in the Pledge of Allegiance.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA
Mr. Jones moved to approve the Agenda as presented. There was a second by Ms. Creech and the
Motion was carried.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES
Chairman Kemp asked for any questions on or amendments to the Minutes of the Regular Meeting held
on January 28, 2025; however, there were none.

Mr. Jones moved to approve the Minutes of the January 28, 2025, Regular Meeting. There was a
second by Mr. Fox and the Motion was carried.

Chairman Kemp asked for any questions on or amendments to the Minutes of the Regular Meeting held
on February 25, 2025. Chairman Kemp said there was an error in the final paragraph of page 22 in
reference to the recommendation that the 100 Acre Site be considered as a Class 3 facility rather than a
Class 2 facility.

Chairman Kemp stated that the error was corrected.

Mr. Berry moved to approve the Minutes of the February 25, 2025 Rescheduled Regular Board
Meeting as amended. There was a second by Mr. Fox and the Motion was carried.

Minutes of Regular Meeting, February 25, 2025 1



PUBLIC INPUT
Chairman Kemp stated there was no Public Input.

Recycling and Corporate Affairs Update — Mrs. Murphy offered an update of various projects in the
Recycling and Corporate Affairs Division that were included on pages 14 — 21.

Statement of Economic Interest — Mrs. Murphy reminded the Board that the deadline for
submitting their Statement of Economic Interest to the State of Ethics Commission was 12 PM on
March 30, 2025. She stated that although she was aware that some have already completed this, the
deadline is March 30th for others who have not.

Grinding of the Greens — Mrs. Murphy reported that the Grinding of the Greens program was
complete the first week of February. She said that staff estimated about 1100 Christmas trees
collected through the recycling centers and scales house. Mrs. Murphy said the trees were ground
into Christmas tree mulch. Mrs. Murphy stated that over 4,000 public service announcements were
broadcasted on various TV networks and all the ads were free to the SWA. She also mentioned that
mulch was still available and that if anyone was interested, staff members would be pleased to help
with loading.

Oyster & Arts Festival — Mrs. Murphy informed the Board that the SWA took part in the Second
Annual Oysters and Arts Festival on February 1. She said that staff managed an information table,
distributing information about recycling, and engaging the public about oyster shell recycling which
was available at the event. Mrs. Murphy reported the oyster shells that were collected on that day
were then transported and placed in quarantine and after that time was up, they would be used to
rebuild local oyster reefs. Mrs. Murphy stated that the SWA began recycling oyster shells at the
landfill in November 2023 and staff had already collected over 1000 pounds of oyster shells.

Caught Green Handed Update — Mrs. Murphy informed the Board the January “Caught Green
Handed” recipient was Ms. Barbara Jackson. She stated Ms. Jackson was a recycler at Sarvis
Recycling Center and she was thankful to be recognized.

Home Show 2025 — Mrs. Murphy informed the Board that the SWA participated in the Annual
Home Show held at the Myrtle Beach Convention Center that was presented by the Horry
Georgetown Home Builders Association. Mrs. Murphy said that it was very busy and indicated there
were over 300 vendors at the Home Show. Mrs. Murphy said she was unable to provide a definitive
attendance figure but stated there were over 10,000 people at the convention center on Saturday.
Mrs. Murphy stated the Home Show was great and the SWA staff provided a wealth of information.

Ms. Creech expressed gratitude to staff and said that they did an amazing job at the Home Show.

Ms. Creech inquired why the phone was not being utilized for conference calls. Mrs. Murphy
informed the Board that it was decided to stop using the phones under Mr. Jones chairmanship. She
said that although the system was tested and everything functioned as it should, it was creating more
issues than it was helping. Mrs. Murphy informed the Board that the phone was utilized during
COVID because staff could not congregate. She said that since Covid restrictions had been relaxed
anyone may attend Board Meetings because the meetings are opened to the public. Mrs. Murphy
informed the Board that, barring a technical issue, the public may listen to the meetings online the
next business day if they were unable to attend in person.

Minutes of Regular Meeting, February 25, 2025 2



Ms. Creech inquired as to whether the minutes were available to read online. Mrs. Murphy responded
yes, and said the minutes and videos of the SWA Board Meetings online date back to 2013.

Finance and Administration Update — Mrs. Bitting offered an update of the following items which
were included as pages 22 — 37 in the Board Packet.

Monthly Finance Reports — Mrs. Bitting reported that overall tipping fees had increased 9% over
last year at the same time. Mrs. Bitting said that Solid Waste revenue was at 61.35% of budget,
Mixed Construction revenue was at 56.94% of budget projection and Yard Waste revenue was at
58.87% of budget.

Mrs. Bitting said that Recyclable Sales were at 74.05% of budget. Mrs. Bitting stated the C&D
Processing Facility saved 22 days of airspace and the Material Recycling Facility saved 55 days of
airspace. She reported revenues were at 58.05% of budget and expenses were at 49.94%. Mrs. Bitting
reported for the month, expenses over revenue was $283,976.07. She said the SWA’s year-to-date
revenue over expenses was $3,216,624.93. Mts. Bitting stated that staff was doing a great job at
watching the expenses.

Mrs. Bitting provided an overview of the landfill tonnage and reported that Solid Waste was up by
1.87%, Yard Waste was slightly below at -0.40%, and Mixed Construction was 1.74% more than the
same time last year.

Mrs. Bitting informed the Board that the Budget Workshop would be held on Thursday, February
27, at 9 A.M. at the SWA and lunch would be provided.

Operations and Planning Update — Mrs. Todd presented the following updates which were included
on pages 38 — 68 in the Board Packet.

Landfill Update — Mrs. Todd reported the landfill had its monthly inspection on Tuesday, February
4th. She stated that all evaluated areas had been inspected and found to be satisfactory.

Driver of the Month Update — Mrs. Todd said the February Driver of the Month was Luis Ramos
who works for Smart Recycling.

C&D Recycling Update — Mrs. Todd stated that the amount of material processed at the C&D
Recycling Facility in January 2025 to January 2024 had increased by 17.53%.

MRF Update — Mrs. Todd reported that January 2025 saw a 15.16% decrease in the amount of
recyclables received at the MRF as compared to January 2024.

Mrs. Todd provided a comparison of the fiber market and stated that cardboard prices have decreased
and mixed paper prices increased for the month January 2025.

Mrs. Todd said that prices for HDPE was a national three (3) year high. She said that mixed paper
and OCC remained stable for January and February.

Executive Director /Assistant Executive Director — Mr. Knight asked Mr. Marr to come forth and
provide an update on waste tires.

Minutes of Regular Meeting, February 25, 2025 3



Waste Tire Update — Mr. Marr provided an update on waste tire changes He said that there was a
rewrite from the original bill that was completed by the Manufactures Alliance. Mr. Marr said that
the bill was introduced by Senator Gambrell on January 15th. He said it was then referred to the
Committee on Labor, Commerce and Industry. Mr. Marr addressed some of the changes that
occurred. He said they moved the bill language from Title 44 where financials were originated and
moved it to Tile 39. Mr. Marr stated that they increased the tipping fee allowance from $150 to $400
per ton. He said a $2 per tire increase was added to new car sales and there was a removal of the $1
refund to tire retailers. Mr. Marr said that a new manifesting system would be put in place. Mr. Marr
said Department of Revenue (DOR) would be required to work with the Department of
Environmental Services (DES) and an auditing system would be put in place that would require
additional reporting at the state and local level. He said on February 6™ the bill went before the
Occupations and Professions Sub-committee of the Labor and Commerce Industry Committee (LCI)
and came out with a favorable reading. Mr. Marr said on February 7 it went to the LCI Committee,
where it sailed through again with little or no questions, and came out with a favorable reading. He
said it would be sent to the floor of the legislature possibly Thursday, February 20", Mr. Marr stated
that the Department of Treasury sent out a request to all counties to provide information on what
they charge for tires and how many tons of tires that they receive both ST390 and non — ST390 if
available and a breakdown of costs to manage tires. Mr. Knight informed the Board that the SWA
would not lose funding.

Chairman Kemp inquired as to how many tires the SWA was handling. Mr. Marr said roughly 4,000
tons per year were collected. Mr. Marr indicated that 3500 tons came from the tire retailers.

Mr. Knight inquired as to the number of tractor trailer loads that leave the SWA. Mr. Marr said that
2 tractor trailer loads per day, 10 loads per week leaves the SWA.

Chairman Kemp asked how much it costs the SWA. Mr. Marr stated that the SWA received 3,367
tons of ST390 tires and 588 tons of non-ST390 tires in FY2024. Mr. Marr indicated that tipping fees
were $103,000, and the disposal cost was $483,000. Mr. Marr stated that the SWA had a $200,000
decrease from the previous year. He stated that the SWA received $145,000 from the Department of
Revenue, and an additional $72,000 in grant funding for a total of $320,000. General discussion
ensued.

Mr. Knight urged Board Members to review their budget books. He said that the Budget Workshop
would be held on Thursday, February 27th at 9 A.M.

Chairman Kemp asked about the status of Piggyback 2. Mr. Knight informed the Board that
Piggyback 2 was completed. He said that documents were being finalized. Mr. Knight stated that
C&D was being placed on Piggyback 3. Chairman Kemp asked when Piggyback 2 could be put to
use. Mr. Knight informed the Board that staff was waiting on additional information.

Finance & Administration Committee — Ms. Creech informed the Board that there was a Finance and
Administration Committee Meeting held on February 4™, 2025 at 3 P.M. She said that they discussed
the Proposed of Transfer Designated Funds. Mrs. Bitting advised that this year the transfer amount was
$2,151,082. She continued with the recommendation to allocate $1,000,000 into Landfill Construction
for Piggyback Expansion, $750,000 into Equipment Replacement fund and the balance of $401,082 to
go into the General Construction and Development fund.

Minutes of Regular Meeting, February 25, 2025 4



Dr. Hayward Moved to approve the transfer of $1,000,000 into the Landfill Construction for
piggyback Expansion, $750,000 into Equipment Replacement fund and the balance of $401,082 to
go into the General Construction and Development fund. There was a second by Mr. Jones. The
Motion passed.

OLD BUSINESS
Proposed Transfer of Designated Funds — This item was addressed during the Finance &
Administration Committee Report.

NEW BUSINESS
Roundtable Discussion — Ms. Creech stated that more recycling should be done in Horry County. She
said that she believed it would be less expensive than developing new cells. Ms. Creech stated that the
lobbyist recommended that the SWA should consider a resolution that would be presented to the general
assembly. Ms. Creech stated that she had discussed some of her concerns with Mr. Marr. She said that
certain plastics could not be recycled. Ms. Creech suggested sending letters to DES and that she and Mr.
Marr had been studying the process of creating resolutions that had been approved previously in seven
or eight states. Ms. Creech said if anyone had any questions or concerns, they are welcome to share them.

Chairman Kemp expressed the importance of recycling and asked Ms. Creech if the Board could do
anything help to promote recycling.

Chairman Kemp expressed gratitude to Horry County Administrator Spivey for his attendance at the
Board Meeting. He said it was good to have the new Horry County Police Chief Leonhardt, Lieutenant
Buckingham and Corporal Zink in attendance and thanked them for their hard work and dedication.
Chairman Kemp expressed gratitude to Mr. Hughes for attending the meeting.

Ms. Creech expressed gratitude to Ms. Moliterno of the Horry County League of Women Voters for her
attendance.

MOTION TO ADJOURN
There being no further business to come before the Board, Ms. Creech moved, seconded by Mr. Fox
to adjourn the meeting. The Motion was carried, and the February Board Meeting was adjourned at
3:40 P.M.

Minutes approved on March 25, 2025.
HORRY COUNTY SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY, INC.

BY: (L. S))
Robert J. Kemp, Chairman

ATTEST:
(L.S.)

W. Norfleet Jones, Secretary

(L.S.)

Amos C. Berry, Sr.

Minutes of Regular Meeting, February 25, 2025 5



Minutes of Regular Meeting, February 25, 2025

Pam J. Creech

Wayne Fox

Albert G. Hayward, Dr.

Samuel T. Johnson, Jr.

(L.S.)

(L.S.)

(L.S.)

(L.S.)



